Advanced Space Suit for High Fidelity Testing (Z-2) Contract: Questions and Answers 

	Q1: What does the acronym “WYE” stands for?  

	A1: The acronym “WYE” stands for Work Year Equivalent.  Reference Section L.19

	Q2: (Reference L.3, L.4 and L.5 excel files received with the RFP) Is it acceptable to do some minor re-formatting of the excel files received with the RFP package, or should absolutely no changes be made at all to those files? For example, changing column widths, row heights, page breaks, formatting how labor hours and dollars appear within the worksheets, adding links to other worksheets within each of the files, etc.?

	A2:  The excel pricing files included with the Request For Proposal (RFP) may be modified to ensure consistency with the FORMAT instructions given in Section L.19.D.2 of the RFP. 

	Q3: RFP No. NNJ13437303R, Z-2 Suit question regarding content and relationship of Attachment L.3 and L.4 cost templates.  Attachment L.3 requires labor hours, rates and costs by NASA SLC by Contract Year; plus, indirect rate costs/factors and prime non-labor costs by contract year only (not by WBS structure element within the SOW).   Attachment L.4, within the 'TRST' and 'TRT' worksheets within the L.4 file, requires input of labor hours by NASA SLC only (WYEs only, no indirect rate costs, no prime non-labor costs, no total price) by the WBS structure taken from the SOW document breakdown, i.e., Management, SQRA, Suit Components, and Suit Assembly.  Please confirm or clarify that there is no expectation that full price breakdown is required for each WBS structure  area for which labor hours are input in Attachment L.4, anywhere within Attachment L.3 or elsewhere in another submission document?

	A3:  There is no expectation that the cost elements or cost will be broken down by the WBS in either Attachment L.3 or L.4.  As stated in the RFP, page L-21, in the Technical Resources Cost Templates Instructions for Section L, Attachment 4, it states that this “is required to summarize all proposed labor resources for CYs.”  The labor resources are to be broken out by WBS, in order to facilitate evaluation of labor resources described in the management and technical areas and to reconcile the resources proposed in total with the resources proposed in Attachment L.3.



	Q4: RFP NO. NNJ13437303R, question regarding input of minor and major subcontractor’s labor hours by NASA SLC.   What is the expectation regarding how we are to capture and input all subcontractor proposed amounts to our company (as prime), for materials and services that we will purchase from suppliers and service providers.  The 'TRT' templates within Attachment L.4, on the worksheets themselves indicate that the prime needs to input the labor hours in total by SLC for not only its own workforce labor hours, but also needs to include all subcontractors (assume this means minor and major subs) labor hours as well.  If we receive firm fixed price (or CPFF) quotes from suppliers for materials and/or services that we then include in our proposal, is it the expectation that we would receive a full detailed breakdown for every dollar of the quoted materials/ODC dollars into the cost elements, and labor hours by SLC, that the subs used to develop their quote to us as prime?  Perhaps we need to clarify exactly what is defined as a subcontractor, for which such detail cost/hours breakdown is being requested/required, versus a raw materials/service provider, who simply provides us a full price quote, with no cost element breakdown for their materials/services?

	A4: Major subcontractors, which are defined as having an anticipated total contract value of $500,000 or are required to show their costs at the level defined in the RFP in Attachment L.3.  The labor resource portion of all work, including the prime, major and minor subs portions, should be captured in Attachment L.4 in order to demonstrate the contractors approach and understanding of the work.   The total cost of minor subcontractors should be captured on the PCST tab of the Attachment L.3 under the Minor Subcontractor section.  If contracts with subcontractors are Fixed Price, there would not be detail at a cost element level and no cost or rate detail would be expected.



	Q5: RFP No. NNJ13437303R, question regarding dollar threshold for major subcontractor.  The listed major sub threshold is $500K.  Please advise how this $500K threshold was determined?

	A5: The major subcontractor threshold is set at a level that will provide an adequate insight into a proposed subcontractor given the estimated value of this contract. 

	Q6: RFP No. NNJ13437303R - Section I.8(c)(3) - IT Security Management Plan.  Per the narrative in this, plus subsequent paragraph I.8(c)(4) for IT Security Plan, it appears as if the referenced plans are separate submittals. The IT Security Plan states submittal is due 30-days after award.  There is no such reference for the IT Security Management Plan.  Please advise if these plans are separate submittals; and, if yes, what would be the due date timing for an IT Security Management Plan?

	A6:  The IT Plans referenced in section I.8(c)(3) and I.8(c)(4) are separate plans.  The IT Management Plan I.8(c)(3) and the IT Security Plan shall be submitted 30-days after award as stated in DRD Z2PGP-08, Information Technology (IT) Security Program Plan and Reports.  Section J has been updated to accordingly.  

	Q7: Instruction under L.19.D.2 (page L-16 of the RFP), last sentence of 4th paragraph makes reference to "Automating or linking the templates in the Fourth Workbook with the first three workbooks/files is not required.  There are only three workbook files that were received (CF, Technical, and Other).  Is the reference to a fourth workbook a "typo" error?

	A7:  The reference to a fourth workbook is an error and Section L has been updated accordingly.

	Q8: Question regarding submission of Government Property Management Plan (GPMP).  DRD Z2PGP-07 includes basic description of content of the GPMP; and, states it is due with the proposal submission, with a final GPMP 30-days after contract award.  There does not appear to be instruction within the RFP, specifically within Section L, stating which of the five proposal Volumes that the GPMP should be included within.  Please advise whether the GPMP should be placed within a specific Volume, or if it is intended to be a stand-alone document submittal as part of the total RFP response?

	A8: The Government Property Management Plan shall be submitted in Volume I of the RFP.  Section L has been updated accordingly.

	Q9: In Section L.19.A.1, Technical Acceptability Volume I, it references DRD Z2PGP-05, Total Compensation Plan, as being part of the proposal in Volume I within the Management Approach section of Volume I. In Table L-1 under L.18 on RFP page L-10, it states that "sections A-J with all fill-ins completed...." are to be included in Volume V.  The Total Compensation Plan per Attachment J.7 cover page seems to be required as part of Volume V (not Volume I).  Please clarify should the Total Compensation Plan, as outlined in DRD Z2PGP-05 Content Items 1 to 11, be included as part of Volume I; or, as part of Volume V; or, as part of both Volumes I and V?

	A9: The Total Compensation Plan as outlined in DRD Z2PGP-05 shall be included in both Volumes I and V.

	Q10: Question with regards to the DRD Z2PGP-05, Total Compensation Plan in the SCOPE paragraph references to the "Plan" and the "Templates (a) to (e)" being required submittals, with the Plan assumed to be part of Volume V, and the compensation cost templates being included in Volume IV. Within Section L, Attachment L.5, there are worksheets within the excel file for (a) though (d), but no (e).  Should there be a Compensation Cost Template (e) within the L.5 excel file?  Also, for the Total Compensation Plan required to be submitted in Volume V Section J.7, is there a standard or typical format that the "plan" document should follow, or is the "plan" intended to be free style as long as we include the Content items 1 through 11 listed on pages J.1-29 to J.1-30?  

	A10:  Any reference to Template (e) under the DRD Z2PGP-05 is in error.  The Total Compensation Plan DRD Z2PGP-05 will be updated to state:  “The Total Compensation Plan and Total Compensation Templates (a) through (d) will be required for both the prime team members and all subcontractors that meet the criteria in NFS 1852.231-71(d).  

Offerors can choose how to format their Total Compensation Plan provided that the plan addresses all content items of DRD Z2PGP-05, and is consistent with the formatting instructions in Section L.

	Q11: DRD Z2PGP-04, page J.1-28 of the RFP in the FORMAT section states that data shall be submitted in a format substantially the same as enclosed Forms 1, 2 and 3 with this DRD.  It does not appear that the referenced Forms 1, 2 and 3 are included in the RFP package?

	A11: The RFP has been updated to include the referenced forms 1, 2, and 3 as stated under the FORMAT section of DRD Z2PGP-04.

	Q12: Please clarify how all questions regarding the RFP are to be submitted.  The RFP Cover letter, dated Dec 18th on page 2 indicates that questions are to be in writing via email direct to Lawrence Miller.  However, other documents (PPT presentation page 5 and as spoken during pre-proposal conference; plus, the synopsis of the solicitation on NASA website, last updated Dec 18th) seem to indicate questions can only be submitted via the Z2 website questions submission form.  Please advise if both methods of submitting questions are acceptable, or if only the Z2 question submission form can be used?

	A12: Continue to submit questions via the Z-2 website anonymous questions form. One of the goals of our Streamlined Procurement Team is to provide excellent communication with interested parties, while ensuring that all relevant information is distributed fairly. 

	Q13:  During the Pre-Proposal Conference, while on Page 27, the NASA speaker indicated that all bidders would need to be registered in the "SAM" federal database, as NASA was migrating from CCR/ORCA, to the SAM database.  I reviewed the overview of SAM on the website www.sam.gov, and see where it states that if an organization maintains its status current in CCR/ORCA, that nothing needs to be done to update SAM.  However, it also states that an organizations account access rights in CCR/ORCA do not allow for automatic access to SAM.  Please clarify the statement that all bidders need a current SAM registration/account; and, do we need a separate account in SAM setup for purposes of this RFP and/or need to access SAM under a separate access account, other than the user ID/password we already have for CCR/ORCA?  Also, if we need to create a separate account in "SAM", what will we need to do within that separate account, as it relates to this RFP, if our status in CCR/ORCA is current?

	A13:  All offerors need to be registered in the System for Award Management (SAM) federal database.  Entities with an active registration in CCR will have an active registration in SAM. All users will need to go into SAM and register for their own account so that they can update/renew their profiles. ORCA did not migrate to SAM so users need to go into their profile and fill out their “reps and certs” (formerly ORCA).  

	Q14: I have submitted three questions to date regarding this RFP, and do not see where a question submission confirmation is being provided.  When "Submit Question" is clicked on, the question typed into this form is displayed, but how do I know that the question has actually received by NASA?

	A14: Upon submitting a question via the Z-2 website anonymous questions form the following response should be received: “Please continue to submit your questions via the Z-2 website anonymous questions form. One of the goals of our Streamlined Procurement Team is to provide excellent communication with interested parties, while ensuring that all relevant information is distributed fairly.  To accomplish this goal, we will post pertinent questions and our responses on our website at: http://procurement.jsc.nasa.gov/z2pgp/ (on the Questions & Answers page).  Please understand that we may not know the answer to your question immediately, but we will work diligently to post our response in a timely manner.
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	Q15: The RFP indicates a period of performance of April 1, 2013 to Oct 31, 2013.  The proposal pricing excel templates list a Contract Year 1 (CY1) and Contract Year 2 (CY2).  However, I do not see what defines CY1 and CY 2.  Would CY1 and CY 2 be:

1. CY 1 = April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014; CY 2 = April 1, 2014 to October 31, 2014?; or,

2. CY 1 = April 1, 2013 to Dec 31, 2013; CY 2 = January 1, 2014 to October 31, 2014?

	A15:  The Contract Year (CY) is defined as the following: CY 1 = April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014; CY 2 = April 1, 2014 to October 31, 2014.  Clarifying language has been added to the RFP.

	Q16: Is there a way to submit a group of questions with a MS WORD document, as an attachment within this question entry form, rather then type them individually into this entry form?

	A16: Currently the system does not allow the attaching of documents when submitting questions and answers via the website.

	Q17: Are any kind of gloves a deliverable under this solicitation?  Will gloves be part of any other solicitation under the Advanced Exploration Systems program?

	A17:  There is no glove work included under this solicitation. At this time there are no solicitations for glove development under the Advanced Exploration Systems program.

	Q18: FP No. NNJ13437303R - question for Section L.19.A(2). The offeror is required to include copies of the completed TRT's in Volume I.  Do the completed TRT's count against the Volume I page limit?  Would the government allow the TRT's to be Attachments to Volume I, where they (attachments) would not count against the page limitations for Volume I?

	A18:  Section L.19.A.2 is updated to reflect the following change: “The Offeror shall complete Attachment L-4, TRT, and submit a printed copy of the TRT as an Attachment to Volume I, Technical Acceptability.  The attachment of the TRT shall not count against the page count for Volume I, Technical Acceptability.  The TRT shall agree with the Technical Approach. In the event there are inconsistencies between the TRT and the Technical Approach, then the TRTs will take precedent.”

	Q19: RFP No. NNJ13437303R - question for Attachment L.4, TRT file.  The TRT templates do not include cells for non-labor costs.  Does NASA require a breakdown of non-labor costs to the recommended WBS (similar to labor hours), and if so, in what format is that to be reported?



	A19:  There is no expectation that the cost elements or cost will be broken down by the WBS in either Attachment L.3 or L.4. (Reference Q&A #3 and #4)

	Q20: RFP No. NNJ13437303R - question regarding Section E.2 reference to AS9100.  In reference to E.2 (52.246-11, Higher Level Contract Quality Requirements) requirement for AS9100, this requires "Key Characteristics in accordance with AS9103" and "First Article in accordance with AS9102", which are typically instituted on higher volume programs that lead to production.  For a single unit, implementing Key Characteristics and First Article may not provide any value to the customer.  Since flight hardware has been delivered on various programs using ISO9000, we are requesting the solicitation be modified to eliminate both "Key Characteristics in accordance with AS9103" and "First Article in accordance with AS9102" from the general AS9100 requirement, or that the requirement be replaced with ISO9000/NHB5300.4(1D-2).

	A20: NPR 8730.5 NASA Quality Assurance Program Policy mandates all critical and complex work be performed in accordance with AS9100.

Since the Z2 will be used in manned testing, the Z2 is considered critical and complex. The Z2 is considered a “prototype”, not a “production” item, therefore it is not in the scope of AS9103. Since the Z2 prototype is not considered as a representative sample of a production run as required by AS9100 7.5.1.1. that First Article requirement would not apply.

	Q21: RFP No. NNJ13437303R - question regarding Past Performance instruction at Section L.19B.  Section L.19B, paragraph (1) states that offerors and major subcontractors shall provide past performance information.  The balance of the section appears to use the terms "subcontractor" and "major subcontractor" interchangeably.  Does this section only apply to primes and major subcontractors, or do certain parts of this section apply to "non-major" subcontractors as well?

	A21:  Section L.19.B applies to primes and any major subcontractors (subcontracts estimated annual value greater than $500K).

	Q22: RFP No. NNJ13437303R - question regarding Attachment J.1.  In Attachment J.1, Section J.1-5, item Z2PGP-01 requires that a Management Plan (MP) be submitted with the proposal.  However, Section L provides no direction on where the MP should be included in our submission.  Would the Government allow the MP as an attachment to Volume I, where it would not count against the page limitations?

	A22: Section L provides direction for submission of the DRD-Z2PGP-01, Management Plan in Section L.19.A.1, Management Approach.  This section is encompassed under Volume I, Technical Acceptability.   This section shall be counted against the page count stated in Table L-1: Overview of Proposal Volumes, Page Limitations, Proposal Copies, and Due Dates.

	Q23: RFP No. NNJ13437303R - question regarding font requirements.  In Section L.18 font requirements are listed.  Would the Government consider allowing a 10-point font in all graphics (tables, charts, graphs, plans, figures, diagrams and schematics)? This would allow us to provide evaluators with all the information they need in a readable format and within page limitations.



	A23: To ensure consistency between proposals, the RFP will require that ALL font be no smaller than 12-point Times New Roman (non-compressed) with no exception for tables, charts, graphics and figures.


